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Frequently Asked Questions Regarding the ARRC’s Request for Proposals for the Publication of 
Forward-Looking Term SOFR Rates 

• Is the ARRC open to use of OIS data in the calculation of a term-rate or do they believe that it should 
be based only on futures data? 
 
While the ARRC has a preference for rates that are anchored by observable transactions entered in 
to at arms-length, as reflected in the IOSCO Principles, the ARRC has not specified that any particular 
source of transactions data for SOFR derivatives is preferred over another source.   
 

• Is the ARRC open to other methodologies besides the methods used in Heitfield-Park in using 
futures or other data? 

The ARRC is concerned with the accuracy and robustness of the proposed rates that it will review 
and believes that a wide range of methodologies can potentially produce such rates.   

 
• Does that ARRC have a preference for a narrow or wider window in capturing transactions or quotes 

for use in the calculations or a term rate? 
 
The ARRC has a preference for rates that are anchored by observable transactions entered in to at 
arms-length, as reflected in the IOSCO Principles, and is concerned with their resilience as reflected 
in the questions in the RFP.  The ARRC will evaluate the proposals it receives against these criteria, 
and the others stated in the RFP, and not specifically the length of window over which transactions 
or quotes are captured.   
 

• Is there a presumption that the term-rate that the ARRC recommends should be administered in the 
United States? 

 
The RFP asks that proposals demonstrate compliance with international best practices for 
benchmarks, including the governance and oversight of its processes; the RFP does not specify that 
the proposed rates must be administered in the United States.  If a prospective administrator 
expects that its proposed rate would be administered outside of the United States, its proposal 
should describe any non-U.S. regulations and authorities to which the rate would be subject. 
 



 
• Would it be acceptable to the ARRC to receive a response which highlights features that would 

benefit from further market consultation and feedback?” 

 

The ARRC would not a priori rule out a proposal from consideration that included points on which 
further consultation was to be sought.  The ARRC will consider proposals at whatever level of detail 
they are presented, including an assessment of what details are final and what are not or that may 
benefit from further market consultation.   

 

• Does the ARRC plan to take any actions to facilitate the availability data to benchmark 
administrators interested in responding to the ARRC’s RFP? 
 
The ARRC is a voluntary body that cannot compel private-sector entities to make data available to 
any potential administrator.  Firms responding to the RFP will need to secure rights to any data they 
seek on their own account and, as noted in the RFP, should demonstrate that they have or can 
secure the rights to any data needed in order to produce their proposed rates. 
 

• The RFP asks the question “Describe any costs or limitations your firm would impose on the 
accessibility of historical data by commercial users or retail financial services customers and your 
firm’s customer service plans.” Can you clarify whether the ARRC expects respondents to provide a 
price list for Term SOFR and whether this should cover just access to historical data or whether it 
should also include access to real time data?  
 
The ARRC seeks what detail that respondents to the RFP are able to provide, which may include 
price lists if the respondent has determined them.  Details should include both any costs and 
limitations imposed on access to historical data and on access to real-time data.  The ARRC requires 
that the recommended administrator will make the forward-looking term rates readily accessible on 
a daily basis to the general public without cost and that more frequent or real-time data be provided 
commercially reasonable terms. 
 

• When reading the RFP document for the Forward-Looking SOFR Term Rates, there is a statement 
made in section VI.b.ii: “Include historical data on each input, where available.” Does this mean we 
should include the historical input data files (swap, future, etc.) as part of the RFP package? Also, do 
we also need to publish these data to the general public later on? 
 
The ARRC believes that it will aid its analysis of proposals responding to the RFP to have access to 
historical input data files.  The ARRC intends to post publicly the proposals received from each 
submitter, but does not plan to publicly release any accompanying historical data files it receives, 
but (1) as part of any recommendation of any particular proposal that the ARRC may make, it 
expects to provide summary data that may be based on such input data in order to explain the basis 
for its recommendation, and (2) the ARRC believes that the general public would benefit from the 



 
release of input data by any vendor that intends to publish a SOFR-based term rate in order for 
market participants to analyze the rates and their properties.   
 

• The ARRC has asked respondents to provide evidence of how their proposed rates would behave in 
different circumstances, asking that respondents “Design a forward-looking simulation of term rates 
for the next year given 5 specified scenarios of SOFR rates paths. The attached file includes a tab for 
each scenario with data on the daily path of SOFR rates, 1-month and 3-month SOFR futures 
settlement rates and prices and the path of the Fed Funds Target rate (top of the range) for 
reference.” Is the ARRC seeking daily calculations of all term SOFR rates over a one-year period or 
for a given day in the period?   
 
A daily calculation of 1M, 3M, 6M and 12M Term SOFR for all business days during a one year period 
is required. There are a number of ways to approach this problem. The simplest way, and primary 
objective of this question, is to simulate futures prices over the scenario horizon assuming perfect 
foresight. In that case, the only required input is the path of SOFR. The objective is then to examine 
how the implied path of SOFR from the methodology compares with the given path. A secondary 
objective is to assume that actual futures prices over the scenario horizon experience a certain 
amount of volatility or “noise” around the perfect-foresight price, which would make it possible so 
examine the impact of “market frictions” on implied SOFR curve and hence the term rate. Both 
would be very helpful, but we are only requiring the first part. 
 
 

 


